
BOARD OF APPEALS STAFF 
John Tate, Chairman Deborah L. Bell, Planning and Zoning Director 
Marsha Hopkins, Vice-Chairman  Deborah Sims, Zoning Administrator 
Bill Beckwith  Maria Binns, Zoning Coordinator  
Brian Haren E. Allison Ivey Cox, County Attorney
Kyle McCormick 

AGENDA  
Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals 
Fayette County Administrative Complex 

Public Meeting Room 
October 27, 2025 

7:00 P.M. 

*Please turn off or turn to mute all electronic devices during the
Zoning Board of Appeals Meetings 

1. Call to Order.

2. Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Approval of Agenda.

4. Consideration of the Minutes of the Meeting held on September 22, 2025.

PUBLIC HEARING 

5. Consideration of Petition No. A-904-25 – Jose Ruiz, Maria Ruiz, and Jorge A. Ochoa
Farias. Applicants are requesting the following: Variance to Sec. 110-125.(d)(1). – A-R, 
as allowed under Sec. 110-242(c)(1) – Requesting a variance to the minimum lot size for a 
legal nonconforming lot, to allow a lot that is 2.9941 acres to be eligible for development. 
The subject property is located in Land Lots 235 of the 4th District and fronts Highway 92 South. 

6. Consideration of Petition No. A-905-25 – Jean Allen Living Trust. Applicants are
requesting the following: Variance to reduce the side yard setback from 50’ to 20.0’ to 
allow an existing home to remain. The subject property is located in Land Lots 249 and 250 of 
the 4th District and fronts Antioch Road. 

7. Consideration of Petition A-906-25-A-B-C – 5 Parcel Mills, LLC. Applicant is
requesting the following: A-906-25-A: Per Sec. 110-143(6).- Buffer. Reduce the side 
yard buffer on the north property line from 50 feet to 0 feet to accommodate the 
installation of the septic drain field.  A-906-25-B: Per Sec. 110-93.- Reduce the septic 



 

 

tank and septic drain field line setback on the north property line from 25 feet to 6 feet 
to install the septic drain field. A-906-25-C: Per Sec. 110-174(5)a.- Street frontage 
landscape area: to reduce the septic system placement setback from 25 feet to 5 feet on 
the north side of the SR 74 entrance to install the septic drain field. The subject property 
is located in Land Lots 8 of the 6th District and fronts Antioch Road. 
 

8. Consideration of Petition A-907-25 – Michael E. Newman and Billie G. Newman, 
owners. Applicants are requesting the following: Per Sec. 110-125(d)(1)- A-R., as 
allowed under Sec. 110-242(c)(1)-Requesting a variance to the minimum lot size for a 
legal nonconforming lot, to allow a lot that is 4.995acres in the A-R zoning district to be 
eligible for development. The subject property is located in Land Lots 31 of the 7th District and 
fronts Nelms Road. 

 
9. Consideration of the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals 2026 Calendar 

Schedule.  

 
 

 
 

 
 

   



                        Minutes 09/22/2025 

Page 1 
 

 

THE FAYETTE COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS met on September 22, 
2025, at 7:00 P.M. in the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall 
Avenue West, Fayetteville, Georgia. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:      John Tate, Chairman                                            

Marsha Hopkins, Vice-Chairman  
Bill Beckwith 
Brian Haren 
Kyle McCormick 
 

STAFF PRESENT:           Debbie Bell, Planning and Zoning Director  
Deborah Sims, Zoning Administrator 

                                                E. Allison Ivey Cox, County Attorney  
    Maria Binns, Zoning Secretary     
                  

 
1. Call to Order. Vice Chairman Marsha Hopkins called the September 22, 2025, 

meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance. Vice Chairman Marsha Hopkins offered the invocation and 
led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. Approval of Agenda. Brian Haren made a motion to approve the agenda. Bill 
Beckwith seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. Chairman John 
Tate was absent. 
 

4. Consideration of the Minutes of the Meeting held on August 25, 2025. Brian 
Haren made the motion to approve the minutes of the meeting held on August 
25, 2025. Kyle McCormick seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0.  

PUBLIC HEARING 

5. Consideration of Petition A-902-25 – William M. Massengale Disclaimer Trust. 
Applicants are requesting the following: Per Sec. 110-125(d)(4)a.2., front yard 
setback on a collector in the A-R Zoning District is required to be 100 feet. The 
applicant is requesting a variance to reduce the front yard setback from 100 feet to 
23.7 feet to allow an existing accessory structure to remain. The subject property is 
located in Land Lots 132 and 157 of the 4th District and fronts Rising Star Road.  
 
Ms. Debbie Bell asked the applicant, since not having a full present and if they 
would like to request to table the petition to the next Zoning Board of Appeals 
meeting or proceed with the request.  
 

Applicant confirmed they would proceed with the request petition.  
  

  Ms. Bell explained the information above and didn’t know the exact date the 



ZBA Meeting 
09/22/2025 
Page 2 

 

 

barn was constructed, and it was unlikely that it would generate any problems for 
adjacent properties.      
 
 Vice Chairman Marsha Hopkins asked for the presence of the petitioner. 
 
 Mr. Rick Massengale, trustee of the trust and stated that the barn is not located 
where the property is planned to be subdivided, and they photograph from 1955, 
and he believes it’s from the 1900s since his grandfather was born in that barn. Mr. 
Massengale added that the road wasn’t there before it was paved and moved closer 
to the barn, and wanted to keep the house where the barn is located for his 101 year 
old mother.  
 
 Mr. Andrew P. Moore, a neighbor who spoke in support of the petition and 
would like to keep it as it is to preserve the history of Brooks.    
 
 Vice Chairman Hopkins asked if there was anyone else in support of the 
petition, with no response, then asked if there was anyone to speak in opposition to 
the petition, but no one responded. Ms. Hopkins brought the item back to the board 
for comments, questions, or to entertain a motion.  
 
 No comments or questions were addressed by the board. 
 
Bill Beckwith made a motion to APPROVE Petition No. A-902- 25. Brian Haren 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

6. Consideration of Petition No. A-903-25 – Jorge and Veronica Lopez. Applicants 
are requesting the following: Variance to Sec. 110-136(d)(5), to reduce the rear 
yard setback from 30 feet to 27 feet to allow an accessory structure to remain. The 
subject property is located in Land Lots 36 of the 5th District and fronts Respired Road.  
 
Ms. Bell asked the applicant if they would like to continue to proceed or request a 
deferral. 

Applicant agreed to proceed with the petition requested. 
 
Ms. Bell stated read the description for the petition above and added that there was 

an error in staking the property line and setback, resulting in a minor encroachment that 
was discovered when the surveyor prepared the foundation survey of the slab, and will 
not result in any issues with the neighboring properties. Ms. Bell showed the aerial 
photos and the location of the property on the maps.  

 
Vice Chairman Marsha Hopkins asked if the petitioner was present. 
 
Mr. Josh Woods, contractor, stated they have an active permit at the location and 

called the surveyor to have them come out and look at the form boards, they took a 
measurement form midline instead of the far left corner and told them there were too 
closed, went out and moved the slab forward two feet and waited for the foundation 
survey per county procedures and upon receiving the survey found out they were nine 



ZBA Meeting 
09/22/2025 
Page 3 

 

 

foot of the slab crossed that setback and asked the board the approval of the petition. 
             

       Vice Chairman Hopkins asked if anyone else wanted to speak in favor of the 
petition. No one responded. Then she asked if anyone was in opposition. No one 
responded. Vice Chair Hopkins brought the item back to the board for comments or 
questions. 
 
       Commissioner Brian Haren asked Mr. Woods when the survey came out and 
told you to move the slab and come forward two feet. 
 
        Mr. Woods responded No, they told us to move it eighteen inches, and it was 
moved forward two feet to be saved, and after the preliminary inspections, it was 
incorrect.    
 
        Commissioner Haren mentioned he is a licensed surveyor in the state of 
Georgia. 
 
         Mr. Woods responded that he is, but no longer his licensed surveyor, and 
asked the board if they had any other questions. With no response, he thanked the 
board.   
 
         Vice Chairman Hopkins asked if the Board had any other comments or 
questions, or to entertain a motion.  
 
 No comments or questions were addressed by the board.            

 
Brian Haren made a motion to APPROVE Petition No. A-903- 25-A. Bill Beckwith 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  

 
 ***************** 

 Chairman Brian Haren moved to adjourn the September 22, 2025, Zoning Board of 
Appeals meeting. Brian Haren seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0. 

  
       The meeting adjourned at 7:23 p.m. 
 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
                             OF  
                                                  FAYETTE COUNTY 

                                                                                                
 
                                                                                                
                                                                                               

              JOHN TATE, CHAIRMAN                                      
                                                                      _ 
DEBORAH BELL 
DIRECTOR, PLANNING & ZONING  



 pg. 1 A-904-25 

PETITION NO:  A-904-25 
 
Requested Actions:   Variance to Sec. 110-125.(d)(1). – A-R, as allowed under Sec. 110-242(c)(1) – 
Requesting a variance to the minimum lot size for a legal nonconforming lot, to allow a lot that is 
2.9941 acres to be eligible for development. 
      
Location:  1780 Hwy 92 S, Fayetteville, Georgia 30215 
 
Parcel(s): 0446 027 
 
District/Land Lot(s):  4th District, Land Lot(s) 235 
 
Zoning:   A-R,  Agricultural-Residential 
 
Lot Size:   2.9941 Acres 
 
Owner(s):  Jose Ruiz, Maria Ruiz, and Jorge A Ochoa Farias 
 
Agent:   James Hodge 
 
Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  October 27, 2025  
 
REQUEST 
 
Applicant is requesting the following: 
 

Per Sec. 110-242(c)(1), the applicant is requesting a variance to Sec. 110-125.(d)(1), A-R, to 
reduce the minimum lot size in the A-R zoning district for a legal nonconforming lot, to allow 
a lot that is 2.9941 acres to be eligible for development.  The variance amount is 2.0059 acres. 

 
STAFF ASSESSMENT 
 
It is staff’s opinion that this parcel meets the criteria to be eligible for a variance to the minimum lot 
size under Sec. 110-242. 
 

• The lot is a legal nonconforming lot. It has 2.9941 acres, which is less than the required 5.0 
acres in the A-R zoning district. However, it meets the criteria to be eligible for a variance to 
the minimum lot size under Sec. 110-242. 

• The lot was created by deed and plat recorded in Deed Book 183, Pages 285, on July 3, 1978. 
• The variance is necessary for the owners to be able to obtain a building permit for their house. 

 
  



 pg. 2 A-904-25 

VARIANCE SUMMARY & CRITERIA FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
Staff Assessment   
 

Please refer to the application form for the applicant’s justification of criteria. 
 
The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 110-242. (b) states that in order to grant a 
variance, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall and must find that all five (5) conditions 
below exist.   
 
1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular 

piece of property in question because of its size, shape or topography.   
This parcel was created by a deed and plat recorded in Deed Book 183, Pages 285, which was 
recorded on July 3, 1978. It is unique in that it is a legal nonconforming lot that is less than the 
current A-R requirement of 5.0 acres. 

 
2. The application of these regulations to this particular piece of property would create a 

practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship; and, 
The owners would not be able to get a building permit without a variance to the lot size. 
 

3. Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved; and, 
The conditions are unique to this parcel, and the property meets the criteria to be considered 
for the variance. 
 

4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair 
the purposes and intent of these regulations; provided, however, no variance may be 
granted for a use of land or building or structure that is prohibited by this Ordinance; 
and 

It is staff’s opinion that the variance will not be detrimental to the public good. 
 

5. A literal interpretation of this Ordinance would deprive the applicant of any rights that 
others in the same District are allowed; and, 

The applicant would not be able to build a home on this parcel without the variance. 
  



 pg. 3 A-904-25 

HISTORY 
 
This parcel is a legal lot of record documented in a deed and plat recorded in Deed Book 203 Page 
430 on June 8, 1979. The property was zoned from A-R as part of the original county zoning 
ordinances. 
 
ZONING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Sec. 110-242. Powers and duties. 
 
(c) Request for a variance:  Nonconforming Lots. The zoning board of appeals may authorize, 
upon appeal in specific cases, a variance from the terms of these regulations as will not be contrary 
to the public interest where, owing to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the provisions of 
these regulations will, in an individual case, result in practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship, so 
that the spirit of these regulations shall be observed, public safety and welfare secured, and 
substantial justice done. 
(1) The owner of a nonconforming lot may request a variance to the minimum lot size for its 
zoning district.  However, no nonconforming lot shall be eligible for a variance to the minimum lot size 
which would result in the nonconforming lot being less than one acre in size.  Should the subject 
nonconforming lot require a well for its water supply, no such nonconforming lot shall be eligible for 
a variance to the minimum lot size which would result in such nonconforming lot being less than one 
and one-half acres in size. 
 
Sec. 110-125. – A-R, Agricultural-Residential District. 
 

(d) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the A-R zoning 
district shall be as follows: 

(1) Lot area: 217,800 square feet (five acres). 
 (2) Lot width: 250 feet. 
(3) Floor area: 1,200 square feet. 
(4) Front yard setback: 

a. Major thoroughfare: 
1. Arterial: 100 feet. 
2. Collector: 100 feet. 

b. Minor thoroughfare: 75 feet. 
(5) Rear yard setback: 75 feet. 
(6) Side yard setback: 50 feet. 

 
DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  

 
 Water System –No objections. 
 Public Works – No objections. 
 Environmental Management – No objections. 
 Environmental Health Department – No objections.  
 Department of Building Safety – No comments. 
 Fire – No objections. 



 pg. 4 A-904-25 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 5 A-904-25 

 
 



 pg. 6 A-904-25 

 



 pg. 7 A-904-25 

 
 

 
 



 pg. 8 A-904-25 

 
 

 
DEED 



mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle



mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle



mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle













 pg. 1 A-905-25 

PETITION NO:  A-905-25 
 
Requested Actions:   Applicant is requesting a variance to reduce the side yard setback from 50’ to 
20.0’ to allow an existing home to remain. 
      
Location:  366 Antioch Road, Fayetteville, Georgia 30215 
 
Parcel(s): 0448 013 
 
District/Land Lot(s):  4th District, Land Lot(s) 249 and 250  
 
Zoning:   A-R, Agricultural-Residential 
 
Lot Size:  6.0 Acres 
 
Owner(s):  Jean Allen Living Trust 
 
Agent:   Jerome Allen, Power of Attorney 
 
Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  October 27, 2025  
 
REQUEST 
 
On September 22, 2025, the applicant requested to WITHDRAW this petition. 

 
STAFF ASSESSMENT 
 
Staff recommends APPROVAL OF THE REQUEST TO WITHDRAW the petition. 





 pg. 1 A-906-25 

PETITION NO:  A-906-25-A-B-C 
 
Requested Action:   Applicant is requesting variances to the side yard zoning buffer, to 
reduce the side yard septic system zoning buffer, and to reduce the street frontage 
landscape strip to allow the installation of the septic system. 
      
Location:  1591 Hwy 74, Senoia, GA 30276 
 
Parcel(s): 0604 006 
 
District/Land Lot(s):  6th District, Land Lot(s) 8  
 
Zoning:   C-C 
 
Lot Size:  3.68 Acres 
 
Owner(s):  5 Parcel Mills, LLC 
 
Agent:  Richard Lindsey, Attorney 
 
Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  October 27, 2025  
 
REQUEST 
 
Applicant is requesting the following: 
 
A-906-25-A: Per Sec. 110-143(6).- Buffer. Reduce the side yard buffer on the north property 
line from 50 feet to 0 feet to accommodate the installation of the septic drain field.   
 
A-906-25-B: Per Sec. 110-93.-Reduce the septic tank and septic drain field line setback on the 
north property line from 25 feet to 6 feet to install the septic drain field.  
 
A-906-25-C: Per Sec. 110-174(5)a.- Street frontage landscape area: to reduce the septic 
system placement setback from 25 feet to 5 feet on the north side of the SR 74 entrance 
driveway to install the septic drain field. 
 
STAFF ASSESSMENT & RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is staff’s opinion that the history of the parcel creates some unique and difficult constraints. 
The property has a long history of development as a community crossroads area, with 
homes, local businesses, a church, and a school. It was bisected by the former route of 
Georgia State Route 85, as evidenced on a 1940 county map and a 1955 aerial photo (see 
pages 10-12).  This combination of former uses created a property with limited suitable soils 
for a modern septic system. If the variances are approved as depicted on the accompanying 



 pg. 2 A-906-25 

site plan, staff feels that there will be minimal impact on the neighboring property. The area 
that is the subject of the requests is adjacent to the entry drive and detention pond of New 
Hope Baptist Church. 
 
HISTORY 
 
The property has a long history of development as a community crossroads area, with 
homes, local businesses, a church, and a school. It was bisected by the former route of 
Georgia State Route 85, as evidenced on a 1940 county map (see pages 10-12).   
 
On February 24, 2022 - the Board of Commissioners approved rezoning Petition No. 1316-
21 to rezone the property from A-R to C-C for the development of a Convenience Store with 
Fuel Pumps. 
 
ZONING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Sec. 110-93. – Septic tank and septic drain field line setbacks.  

Septic tanks shall be set back a minimum of ten feet from the property line. Septic 
drain field lines shall be set back a minimum of five feet from the property line. In the 
case where a buffer is required, septic tanks and septic drain field lines shall be set 
back a minimum of 25 feet from the property line (see section 110-94). 
 

Sec. 110-143. - C-C, Community Commercial District. 
(d)Dimensional requirements. (6)Buffer. If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or 
A-R zoning district, a minimum buffer of 50 feet adjacent to the lot line shall be 
provided in addition to the required setback and the setback shall be measured from 
the buffer. 

 
Sec. 110-174. - Historic district overlay zone. 

(5) Landscape requirements. In addition to the standard requirements of the landscape 
ordinance, the following landscape requirements shall apply to the Overlay Zone: 

a. Street Frontage: Landscape area: Fifty (50) feet along the right-of-way of SR 
74, SR 85, and Padgett Road. The first 25 feet as measured from the right-of-
way is for required landscape planting only. The remaining 25 feet may he 
used for septic system placement; underground stormwater detention 
systems; and the following stormwater management facilities/structures if 
designed in full accordance with the specifications provided in the most 
current edition of the Georgia Stormwater Management Manual; vegetated 
channels, overland flow filtration/groundwater recharge zone, enhanced 
swales, filter strips, and grass channels, Septic systems and stormwater 
structures shall be exclusive of each other and the minimum distance of 
separation between wastewater and stormwater structures shall be 
established by the Environmental Health Department and the Environmental 
Management Department. Utilities (including underground stormwater 



 pg. 3 A-906-25 

piping) and multi-use path connections may be located anywhere within the 
landscape area. 

 
Sec. 110-94. - Buffer. [definition] 

A buffer shall provide a separation of uses from abutting properties and a visual 
screen through the use of natural vegetation or other means, including, replanting or 
supplemental plantings (see chapter 104, development regulations, for planting 
requirements). Other visual screening elements or noise attenuation devices, such as 
walls or berms, may be utilized in addition to the vegetation in the buffer. Stormwater 
retention and detention facilities may be located in a buffer but shall be set back a 
minimum of 25 feet from the property line. Said 25 feet, as measured from the 
property line, shall be for the aforementioned required natural vegetation, landscape 
plantings, and other visual screening elements or noise attenuation devices only. 
Multi-use path connections and utilities (including underground stormwater piping) 
may be located anywhere within the buffer (see section 110-93). A buffer shall not be 
required along the common boundary where the side or rear yard abuts property 
owned by the board of commissioners, the board of education, a municipality, the 
state or federal government that is in a residential or A-R zoning district. This 
provision shall apply to all buffers required by the zoning.
 

DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  
 

 Water System – No objections. 
 Public Works – No objections. 
 Environmental Management  - No objections. 
 Environmental Health Department – No objections. 
 Department of Building Safety – No objections. 
 Fire – No objections. 
 

  



 pg. 4 A-906-25 

VARIANCE SUMMARY & CRITERIA FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
Staff Assessment   
 

Please refer to the application form for the applicant’s justification of criteria. 
 
The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 110-242. (b) states that in order to 
grant a variance, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall and must find that all five 
(5) conditions below exist.   
 
1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the 

particular piece of property in question because of its size, shape or 
topography.   

The parcel has sloped topography. Although there are not significant 
environmental constraints, the parcel’s development history may impact its current 
uses. 
 

2. The application of these regulations to this particular piece of property would 
create a practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship; and, 

The parcel has a long history of development as a developed site, including being 
the former route of Georgia Highway 85. This predates all current regulations 
governing site development, including pavement, septic system & soil suitability 
analyses and landscape requirements. 

 
3. Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved; and, 

The property is unique in that it developed organically as a community hub with 
numerous buildings and a major roadway. 

 
4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or 

impair the purposes and intent of these regulations; provided, however, no 
variance may be granted for a use of land or building or structure that is 
prohibited by this Ordinance; and 

Relief would reduce the zoning buffer adjacent to an A-R zoned parcel developed 
with a church. Specifically, the area of the request is adjacent to the church’s 
driveway and detention pond. Additionally, the development regulations require  a 
6-foot landscape strip that will still be planted, so a visual screen will still be 
provided. 
  

5. A literal interpretation of this Ordinance would deprive the applicant of any 
rights that others in the same District are allowed; and, 

The applicant may not be able to develop the property according to the regulations 
if the variance is not granted. 

 
 



 pg. 5 A-906-25 

 

 



 pg. 6 A-906-25 



 pg. 7 A-906-25 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 8 A-906-25 

 
 
 
 
 



 pg. 9 A-906-25 

 
 
 
 



 pg. 10 A-906-25 

 
 

 
 



 pg. 11 A-906-25 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 pg. 12 A-906-25 

 
1940 

 

 
1955 



-A-B-C

-A-B-C

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle







mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle





















































 pg. 1 A-907-25 

PETITION NO:  A-907-25 
 
Requested Action:   To approve an illegal lot to be deemed a legal, nonconforming lot, per Sec. 110-
242(h). 
      
Location:  Nelms Road, Fayetteville, GA 30215 
 
Parcel(s): 0701 063 
 
District/Land Lot(s):  7th District, Land Lot(s) 31  
 
Zoning:   A-R, Agricultural-Residential 
 
Lot Size:   4.78  Acres 
 
Owner(s):  Michael Edward Newman and Billie Gail Newman, as Trustees of the Mike and Billie 
Newman Living Trust 
 
Agent:   Jason Newman 
 
Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  October 27,  2025    
 
REQUEST 
 
Applicant is requesting the following: 
  

1. Per Sec. 110-242(h), requesting an illegal lot to be deemed a nonconforming lot. 
 
STAFF ASSESSMENT 
 
This parcel DOES MEET all the criteria outlined in Sec. 110-242(h). Please refer to criteria and 
justification on Page 3 for full details. 
 

(1) The subject property was made illegal by actions of a previous owner via a plat recorded 29 
April 1986, Plat Book 16, Page 181, which was MORE THAN 10 YEARS AGO. The plat was for 
Redwine Quarters, Phase I, and while it did not specifically include this parcel, it created 
this parcel as a remnant. 

 
(2) The petitioner IS NOT a person, or an immediate family member of that person, who 

caused the subject property to be an illegal lot. 
 

(3) As defined in Sec. 110-242(h)(3), THERE IS NOT PROPERTY AVAILABLE to add to this lot to 
transform it into a legal lot. The reduction in area of any of the adjacent lots would cause 
said lot(s) to be illegal in size, road frontage, or lot area. 

 
 
  



 pg. 2 A-907-25 

HISTORY 
 

The property is an illegal lot because it is zoned A-R but has less than 5 acres and was created 
after Nov. 13, 1980. It is a remnant parcel created by the recordation of a plat under a previous 
owner. A plat for Redwine Quarters, Phase I, recorded in Plat Book 16 Page 181, on 29 April 
1986 left this parcel as a remnant. 

 
 

 
DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  

 
 Water System – No comments.  
 Public Works – No objections to the minimum lot size request. 
 Environmental Management – No objections to the minimum lot size request. However, this 

does not guarantee that the lot will be eligible for a building permit as buildable area is 
reduced due to floodplain and riparian buffers. Floodplain delineation will be required for a 
building permit. Prior to issuance of building permits, the owner will be required to locate 
wetlands, creeks, and produce a flood certificate.  

 Environmental Health Department – This office has no objection to the proposed minimum 
lot size request. However, this does not constitute approval of future use, structures, or septic 
capabilities. The minimum lot size for a property on septic and well is 43,560 square feet. The 
following land areas are not considered as a part of a lot when calculating the required 
minimum lot size: right of ways of roads, easements (such as power line or pipe line) that 
exclude installation of an on-site sewage management system, soil conditions that exclude 
the installation of an on-site sewage management system, bodies of water, land within 50 feet 
of a lake, river, stream, wetland or other bodies of water and similar limiting factors. 

 Department of Building Safety – No objections. 
 Fire – No comments. 



 pg. 3 A-907-25 

ZONING REQUIREMENTS 

Article VII.-Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
Sec. 110-242. - Powers and duties. 
 
(h) Request for an illegal lot to be deemed a nonconforming lot. The zoning board of appeals may deem, 
upon appeal in specific cases, an illegal lot which is smaller than the minimum lot size for its zoning 
district, more narrow than the minimum lot width for its zoning district or has less road frontage 
than is required for its zoning to be a nonconforming lot. The zoning board of appeals shall employ 
the following factors for an illegal lot seeking to be deemed a nonconforming lot: 
 

(1) The transaction giving the appellant/petitioner ownership in the subject property was 
more than five years from the date of the appeal/petition or if the period of ownership is 
less than five years the subject property was made illegal more than ten years from the 
date of the appeal/petition; 
 

The subject property was made illegal by actions of a previous owner via a plat 
recorded 29 April 1986, Plat Book 16, Page 181, which was MORE THAN 10 YEARS 
AGO. The plat was for Redwine Quarters, Phase I, and while it did not specifically 
include this parcel, it created this parcel as a remnant.  

 
(2) The appellant/petitioner is not the person, or an immediate family member of the 
person, who caused the subject property to be an illegal lot. For purposes of these 
procedures, "immediate family" is defined as the spouse, child, sibling, parent, step-child, 
step-sibling, step-parent, grandparent, grandchild, aunt, uncle, niece or nephew of the 
person who caused the subject property to be an illegal lot; and 
 

As defined above, the petitioner IS NOT the person, or an immediate family member 
of the person, who caused the subject property to be an illegal lot. 

 
(3) No adjacent property is available to add to the subject property to allow the subject 
property to meet the minimum requirements for its zoning district. In determining whether 
adjacent property is available, if adding any adjacent property to the subject property 
would no longer allow the adjacent property to meet the minimum requirements of the 
adjacent property's zoning district, then the adjacent property is not available. Additionally, 
any adjacent property which is part of an illegal lot shall not be deemed available for 
purposes of these variance procedures, unless the adjacent illegal lot is unimproved and 
the entirety of the adjacent illegal lot is combined with the subject property. If adjacent 
property is available, the cost of acquiring the adjacent property shall not be a factor in 
determining the availability of the adjacent property. 
 

 As defined above, there IS NOT property available to add to this lot to transform it 
into a legal lot. The reduction in area of any of the adjacent lots would cause that 
lot to be illegal in size, road frontage, or lot area. 

  



 pg. 4 A-907-25 

 



 pg. 5 A-907-25 



 pg. 6 A-907-25 

 
 
 



 pg. 7 A-907-25 

 
 
 



 pg. 8 A-907-25 

 

 
SURVEY 

 
 
 

 



A-907-25

X

October 27, 2025

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle



mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

mbinns
Rectangle

















2026 Hearing Schedule for Zoning Board of Appeals – Rev. 06/2025 Page 1 of 1 

Fayette County, Georgia 
140 Stonewall Avenue West, Suite 202, Fayetteville, GA 30214 

Deadline for applicaƟon is the first Friday of the month by noon. If the first Friday of the month is on a holiday, the 
applicaƟon filing deadline is extended to the next business day. Variance applicaƟons require a public hearing held on the 
fourth Monday of the month before the Zoning Board of Appeals. The MeeƟng Schedule reflects adjustments for holidays. 
The public hearing is held at the FayeƩe County AdministraƟve Complex at Stonewall (located at the southwest corner of 
SR 54 and SR 85 in downtown FayeƩeville) on the first floor in the Public MeeƟng Room (near the fountain) and hearings 
begin at 7:00 p.m.  

APPLICATION DEADLINES ZBA MEETING DATES 

December 5, 2025  January 26, 2026 

January 2, 2026 February 23, 2026 

February 6, 2026 March 23, 2026 

March 6, 2026 April 27, 2026 

April 3, 2026   May 26, 2026* 

May 1, 2026   June 22, 2026 

June 5, 2026   July 27, 2026 

July 3, 2026   August 24, 2026 

August 7, 2026 September 28, 2026 

September 4, 2026 October 26, 2026 

October 2, 2026 November 23, 2026 

November 4, 2026* December 14, 2026* 

December 4, 2026 January 25, 2027 

*Dates are adjusted for Holiday meeting schedules and newspaper advertising deadlines.


	A-904-25 Staff Report.pdf
	PETITION NO:  A-904-25
	Location:  1780 Hwy 92 S, Fayetteville, Georgia 30215
	Parcel(s): 0446 027
	Owner(s):  Jose Ruiz, Maria Ruiz, and Jorge A Ochoa Farias
	Agent:   James Hodge
	Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  October 27, 2025
	REQUEST
	HISTORY
	DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS
	 Water System –No objections.
	 Public Works – No objections.
	 Environmental Management – No objections.
	 Environmental Health Department – No objections.
	 Department of Building Safety – No comments.
	 Fire – No objections.

	A-905-25 WITHDRAWN.pdf
	PETITION NO:  A-905-25
	Location:  366 Antioch Road, Fayetteville, Georgia 30215
	Parcel(s): 0448 013
	Owner(s):  Jean Allen Living Trust
	Agent:   Jerome Allen, Power of Attorney
	Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  October 27, 2025
	REQUEST

	A-906-25 Staff Report.pdf
	PETITION NO:  A-906-25-A-B-C
	Location:  1591 Hwy 74, Senoia, GA 30276
	Parcel(s): 0604 006
	Owner(s):  5 Parcel Mills, LLC
	Agent:  Richard Lindsey, Attorney
	Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  October 27, 2025
	REQUEST
	HISTORY
	DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS
	 Water System – No objections.
	 Public Works – No objections.
	 Environmental Management  - No objections.
	 Environmental Health Department – No objections.
	 Department of Building Safety – No objections.
	 Fire – No objections.

	A-907-25 Staff Report.pdf
	PETITION NO:  A-907-25
	Location:  Nelms Road, Fayetteville, GA 30215
	Parcel(s): 0701 063
	Owner(s):  Michael Edward Newman and Billie Gail Newman, as Trustees of the Mike and Billie Newman Living Trust
	Agent:   Jason Newman
	Zoning Board of Appeal Public Hearing:  October 27,  2025
	REQUEST
	HISTORY
	DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS
	 Water System – No comments.
	 Public Works – No objections to the minimum lot size request.
	 Environmental Management – No objections to the minimum lot size request. However, this does not guarantee that the lot will be eligible for a building permit as buildable area is reduced due to floodplain and riparian buffers. Floodplain delineatio...
	 Environmental Health Department – This office has no objection to the proposed minimum lot size request. However, this does not constitute approval of future use, structures, or septic capabilities. The minimum lot size for a property on septic and ...
	 Department of Building Safety – No objections.
	 Fire – No comments.
	(h) Request for an illegal lot to be deemed a nonconforming lot. The zoning board of appeals may deem, upon appeal in specific cases, an illegal lot which is smaller than the minimum lot size for its zoning district, more narrow than the minimum lot w...
	(1) The transaction giving the appellant/petitioner ownership in the subject property was more than five years from the date of the appeal/petition or if the period of ownership is less than five years the subject property was made illegal more than t...
	The subject property was made illegal by actions of a previous owner via a plat recorded 29 April 1986, Plat Book 16, Page 181, which was MORE THAN 10 YEARS AGO. The plat was for Redwine Quarters, Phase I, and while it did not specifically include thi...
	(2) The appellant/petitioner is not the person, or an immediate family member of the person, who caused the subject property to be an illegal lot. For purposes of these procedures, "immediate family" is defined as the spouse, child, sibling, parent, s...
	As defined above, the petitioner IS NOT the person, or an immediate family member of the person, who caused the subject property to be an illegal lot.
	(3) No adjacent property is available to add to the subject property to allow the subject property to meet the minimum requirements for its zoning district. In determining whether adjacent property is available, if adding any adjacent property to the ...
	As defined above, there IS NOT property available to add to this lot to transform it into a legal lot. The reduction in area of any of the adjacent lots would cause that lot to be illegal in size, road frontage, or lot area.




